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August 19, 2013 

Doug Smith 
Board President 
Los Altos School District 
201 Covington Road 
Los Altos, CA 94024 
 
Re:  2013-2014 Facilities;  BCS’s Continued Efforts of Good Faith Negotiation Pursuant to Pub. Res. Code § 
21167.8(b), 5 Cal. Code Regs. § 11969.9(k) 

Dear Doug: 

On behalf of BCS, I am responding to your August 16, 2013 letter.  It is unfortunate that the Los Altos 
School District Board of Trustees (“LASD” or “the District”) persists in denying its obligations to BCS and 
the status of the Proposition 39 offer for 2013-2014.  To recap the sorry events of the last fifteen days: LASD 
belligerently locked out our teachers and staff on August 2, 2013, the day after the District was required to 
provide fully furnished and equipped facilities per your own Proposition 39 offer.  Your illegal, egregious 
lock-out remained in place until August 13, 2013, which is two business days beyond the last possible date 
you could have made the facilities fully available under Proposition 39 under any circumstance, and 
exposing the District to monetary damages for the disruption to our school.  You claim to have done so under 
the guise of a Facilities Use Agreement (“FUA”) requirement, wherein you unilaterally and unlawfully 
attempted to more than double the use fee, impose additional (and illegal) conditions on our use of the 
facilities, and implied that BCS should disenroll a number of children who have every right to attend the 
charter, presumably to force them to enroll in LASD-run schools.  Before I conclude this letter by accepting 
LASD’s August 9, 2013 FUA (signed by Superintendent Baier August 11) under protest and duress, I offer 
the following responses to your repeated inaccurate statements about the 2013-2014 offer and our pending 
legal action, and your feigned ignorance of the mandatory obligation under law to negotiate in good faith.   

Contrary to your assertions otherwise, no court has ever upheld LASD’s so-called “terms of use” for 2013-
14, or that LASD’s “process” and “offer were made in full compliance with the law.”  I have no idea why 
you state something so plainly false, other than perhaps to mislead the public.  LASD’s 2013-2014 offer is 
the subject of pending litigation, which is at the beginning stages.  BCS just recently requested a hearing as 
required by statute, which to my knowledge has not yet been calendared by the court.  You may be 
attempting to distort a much more narrow court ruling.  After BCS filed its lawsuit in May, we immediately 
brought a motion seeking immediate judgment on the basis that we believe LASD should have offered BCS a 
single, contiguous site.  We took that expedited step to save both BCS and District resources in that issuance 
of the judgment sought would have ended the 2013-14 litigation altogether and the remaining issues (caps, 
grade restrictions, etc.) would be moot.  Unfortunately, the court denied our motion, which means there is no 
judgment for either party and BCS must fully litigate the dispute to final judgment.  As you know since you 
were present in the courtroom, the court spent considerable time urging the parties to negotiate a settlement.   

The law requires that LASD negotiate in good faith concerning the disputed matters for 2013-2014.  Public 
Resources Code section 21167.8 mandates that LASD “shall attempt in good faith to settle the litigation and 
the dispute that forms the basis of the litigation. The settlement meeting discussions shall be comprehensive 
in nature and shall focus on the legal issues raised by the parties concerning the project that is the subject of 
the litigation.”  That is exactly what BCS has been trying to do.  It is disturbing that LASD repeatedly 
refuses to negotiate in good faith despite the legal mandate that it do so.  Your response to our effort was to  

 

 



lock us out of the facilities that BCS children have just as much right to enjoy as children who attend 
District-run programs.  Worse, LASD’s communications imply that BCS should disenroll children from the 
charter school to meet your unlawful demands, thereby forcing children who have chosen BCS back into 
LASD schools.   

Concerning the FUA in particular, BCS’s rights under Proposition 39 are provided by statute, not by 
contract.  LASD is required to “negotiate” terms of an FUA, if the parties decide together that they want one.  
(See, 5 Cal. Code Regs. § 11969.9(k).)  As you know, there has been no FUA for the past four school 
calendar years.  LASD’s April 1, 2013 final offer explicitly referenced the form and substance of the “2008-
2009” FUA, which is substantially different from what you have now proposed.    

For purposes of this letter, we do not need to get into the details and reasons why we believe certain 
conditions of LASD’s offer are unlawful and unenforceable.   It is enough that we have timely filed our legal 
challenge which is currently pending in the courts.  We are confident that the court will ultimately set aside 
the District’s CEQA document and action, which of course includes the 2013-2014 Proposition 39 offer 
itself.  BCS continues to desire to discuss and negotiate a settlement in good faith, and we are hopeful that 
LASD will change its position and strive for the same.   

In light of the foregoing and BCS’s continued and consistent efforts to negotiate in good faith, we are 
enclosing the FUA dated August 9, 2013 unilaterally imposed by the District, which we sign under protest 
and duress so as to avoid another disruptive lock-out or the other harms you have so egregiously threatened 
our school and families.  It is our position that LASD cannot impose otherwise unlawful requirements upon 
BCS as a condition of Proposition 39.  There is no surprise here about BCS’s projected and actual enrollment 
numbers.  BCS will most likely have even greater enrollment next year.  We intend to hold you to your 
commitment in this FUA to negotiate terms, particularly relating to grade level restrictions and “caps” on 
enrollment.  We expect you to negotiate the disputed matters in good faith.   

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Ken Moore 
Board Chair, Bullis Charter School 

 
cc  BCS Board of Directors 
 LASD Board of Trustees 

 




























